
  

ENGLEWOOD SCHOOLS 2007-70-(1) 
Englewood, Colorado  
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Education 
June 5, 2007 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: MS. KAREN MILLER, Presiding 

MR. SCOTT GORSKY 
MS. HEATHER HUNT 
MRS. SHERRY SCAGGIARI 
MS. SHELLEY THOMPSON 
 

ABSENT:       
 
STAFF PRESENT: Dr. James McCabe, Superintendent 

Ms. Joan Diedrich, Director, Student Services 
  Mr. Chris Gramstorff, Chief Operating Officer 
   Ms. Peg LaPlante, Chief Financial Officer 
   Mr. Dale Stout, Director, Technology 
   Ms. Mary Vedra, Director, Learning Services 
     
OTHERS PRESENT: 
 
  

Carolyn Sifuentes 
Shannon Eldridge 
Vicki Howard 
Shawn Faires 
Lori Faires 
Cheryl Cambra 
Les Cowger 

Tom Munds 
Debbie Penn 
Tami Ell ing 
Leslie OÕConnor 
David Will iams 
Jon Hubbard 
Adele Reester 

  
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 Ms. Miller, President, called the regular meeting of the Board of Education to order at 

7:03 p.m. in the Board Room of the Roscoe L. Davidson Administration Building.   
  

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
III. ADDITIONS TO AND ADOPTION OF AGENDA  
 Dr. McCabe said that the Englewood High School FBLA Team would not present 

tonight; most of the team have started summer jobs and could not attend.  Also, there 
would be a personnel addendum. The agenda was adopted as amended. 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
• Ms. Hunt requested a change to the minutes stating the minutes read  ÒThe teachers 

plan to establish model classrooms containing the most current technology 
equipment so all students w ill have access to technology.Ó  Ms. Hunt was not certain 
she understood stating that she was not sure that is what they intended to do.  Ms. 
Miller said that was something they said they would do.  Ms. Hunt said ÒRight but it 
reads that is what they are going to do and I thought we should clarify that, because 
the way it reads it is l ike we are locking them into something they may not be 
intending to do.Ó 

 



  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING JUNE 5, 2007  2007-71-(2) 

 
• Under action item number 5 Ms. Hunt would like included in the minutes the 

process that Ms. Vedra explained was used to select the textbook.  Dr. McCabe asked  
if she would like that to be added and she said she would because she thought it was 
important to provide the background of what took place before it came to the Board.  
The minutes will be amended to include the process used by the textbook committee.  

• Ms. Scaggiari, stated that she would like more of the questions and answers from the 
meeting quoted in the minutes rather than just a summary.  Dr. McCabe said there 
are three or four ways you can keep minutes so it depends on what the Board likes, 
some do a script, some do condense and some only do decisions so it depends on 
what level of minutes you want to keep.  Ms. Scaggiari remarked that when she read 
the minutes she wondered Òwere we actually at the Board Meeting, were any Board 
Members here and did they ask any questions?Ó  Dr. McCabe asked isnÕt this how it 
has been done, did they script it previously?  Ms. Scaggiari stated that she thinks the 
minutes seem is less scripted.  Dr. McCabe said we can do whatever the Board 
directs.  Ms. Hunt said she knew what Ms. Scaggiari meant that the Board has a lot of 
discussion and then it is summarized and if you werenÕt present you would not think 
there was a lot of discussion.  Ms. Miller stated it needed to be Board consensus and 
that the public needed the information provided but they did not need the he said, 
she said, but that is entirely a Board decision.  Mr. Gorsky asked if we could produce 
preliminary minutes to be viewed by the Board and then trimmed down.  Then we 
could kind of pick and choose.  Ms. Miller stated that the Board needs to decide what 
they want. 

 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

• !A  parent of a Sinclair student and community member addressed the Board 
concerning the mandatory requirement of Spanish at all grade levels at Englewood 
Middle School saying she objected to the fact that only Spanish was offered and 
asking why it was a requirement?  Mentioning that the flyer for Englewood Middle 
Schools states all students w ill strive for fluency in Spanish and asked if the Spanish-
speaking students would be required to be fluent in English.  A large part of her 
objection to this requirement is that her student does not want to learn to speak 
Spanish but would prefer another language. Ms. Miller explained that a foreign 
language was part of the Middle Years Program of International Baccalaureate (IB) 
requiring 50 hours every year.  Ms. Miller stated we are trying to improve the 
offerings.  Ms. Vedra stated that foreign language is required by most colleges and 
universities and the district wants our students to be prepared. We are trying to 
prepare our students for the 21st century and what w ill be expected of them and we 
want all students to be proficient and prepared for their future. Ms. Hunt asked Ms. 
Vedra to explain  the process for how students who have English as their second 
language works.  Ms. Vedra explained that we have a strong English as a second 
language program and every student who does not speak English is on an ELL plan 
to build their skil ls in English.  The goal is that both English speakers and Spanish 
speakers become fluent in both languages and leave middle school able to speak 
both English and Spanish.  
 

VI. SPECIAL REPORTS AND RECOGNITION 
 There were no special reports. 
 



  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING JUNE 5, 2007  2007-72-(3) 

 
VII. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 

• !Education Foundation Ñ Ms. Thompson reported that the foundation has elected 
officers, Mary Dounay will serve as President, Linda Cohn as 1st Vice President and 
Roscoe Davidson as 2nd Vice President and Dr. McCabe will continue in his role as 
secretary.  She looks forward to a very strong year.  

• Student Government Meetings at EHSÑ Mr. Gorsky and Ms. Miller announce that the 
students talked about lanyards with student ID's that all students would wear. This is 
part of the Positive Behavior Support program and the feedback has been positive.. 
Student schedules would be printed on the back so a teacher could easily determine 
where a student should be at all times.  Ms. Eldridge said the aim is better security at 
our school.  Sophomores through good attendance and grades could earn off campus 
privileges, they are discussing the details w ith Ms. Torres and the other administrators. 

 
A lso discussed was the posting of publication announcements of scholarships that are 
available by placing announcements on a bulletin board.  This would support students 
looking for college assistance. 
 
The increase in student fees was also discussed and Ms. Eldridge said the one thing 
they did not get support for was SmartBoards people said they were annoying but some 
had no experience w ith them. They do seem to l ike the clickers.  No one is happy about 
increasing fees but they do like some of the possibilities the increased fees could 
provide.  Mr. Gorsky said the students ranked the technology items and liked the 
clickers the best with the projectors being number two, the document handlers third 
and the SmartBoards being last. The clickers provide instant feedback. Ms. Eldridge 
said the use of clickers would have to be monitored because they can lead to 
inappropriate interaction among students. 
 
Ms. Thompson asked if the counselors have some sort of scholarship board and Ms. 
Eldridge said no they don't, if students want information on scholarships they have to 
go to the counselors..  Ms. Thompson suggested that system be looked at.  Ms. Hunt 
inquired if scholarship information could be accessed on the Internet. Ms. Vedra said 
student do register, in ninth grade, for College in Colorado and through that website 
they have access to all available scholarships and college applications. 
 
Ms. Miller said the other thing they touched on was the interview process for new 
teachers, which included students, the feedback was very positive.  Ms. Eldrige stated 
she was proud of the EHS administrators for taking this step to invite the students into 
the hiring process and hopes it will be a permanent arrangement. 
 

• Ms. Miller Attended the CASB President's MeetingsÑ She reported feeling fortunate 
that our district is not dealing with some of the serious situations that other districts are 
facing. 
CHASSA has been asked to be more sensitive to scheduling athletic events that conflict 
w ith religious holidays. 
 
Jane Urschel from CASB discussed changes in high school graduation requirements. 
 
 



  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING JUNE 5, 2007  2007-73-(4) 

 
There is a panel that is looking at human sexuality instruction.  This is a result of the 
controversy from Boulder Valley.  
 
Regarding school finance issues the Colorado Legislature would like to have school 
district co-host meetings to gain feedback from the community to share at their financial 
reform committee meeting.  Ms. Miller said she had talked to Littleton about co-hosting 
w ith them. A tool-kit document is being provided for guidance about holding the 
meetings.  Dr. McCabe asked about a timeline for these meetings and Ms. Miller said 
they would have to start this summer so they can take the information gained to the 
Legislature. Denver. 
 
Ms. Miller said the State is looking at finance reform and Governor Ritter is also looking 
at having differential diplomas where there would be students who achieved standards 
above the norm could receive the Governors Diploma from the State.  Ms. Hunt asked if 
they are asking for community input and Ms. Miller said they are looking at an open 
forum including flyers they would send out to the community.  Karen said if anyone 
wants copies of the information she received at the meeting she would provide them. 

 
VIII. SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 

• Dr. McCabe said at the annual CHASSA solo ensemble contest in Greeley, Englewood 
had the highest number of entries and they all placed one or two out of five.  Bobby 
Miller was named to the All-State Choir, Brian Rice, who played a piano solo at the 
awards assemble, received a superior rating. 

• ELA Destination Imagination is back from Global.  They placed 17th in their group. 
• Dr. McCabe thanked all the people involved in the high school graduations, both in set 

up and participants, everything went well.   
• He also reminded the Board that June 12th, from 7:00 to 8:30 p.m. there would be a 

"Candidates N ight" for anyone interested in running for the Board of Education.  The 
meeting will be in the RDAB Board Room.  He stated he only had confirmation from 
Karen.  Ms. Hunt and Ms. Thomson said they would attend.  Dr. McCabe said he has 
materials to help provide information and topics they might want to talk about.  Jane 
Urschel will open the meeting with information on requirements to run and timelines 
and procedures.  We will follow with a question and answer session. ! 
 

PUBLIC HEARING FOR FISCAL YEAR 2007-2008 BUDGET 
 

Vickie HowardÑ  addressed the Board saying her questions revolved around the technology 
fund and the fee that will be addressed tonight.  She does not object to paying the fee but she 
questions why the district is setting on 4 mill ion dollars that has been there for nine years.  She 
understands they are using the interest and trying to maintain the fund but if they are asking 
for a fee they must not be providing EHS with the money they need for equipment and she 
wonders why they do not provide the necessary for equipment?  Ms. Scaggiari said if we use 
the money then we will have to go back to the community at some point and ask for more 
money.  Ms. Howard said it has been there for nine years and when she voted she thought it 
would be used for technology.  Ms. LaPlante stated the intent of the technology fee is to buy 
consumables not equipment.  The technology fund is for infrastructure like computers and 
server rooms and so many things that go into technology that you do not see.  Some money is 
also used for consultants to help our technology team which is small so we hire consultants to 
help with the changes and advances in technology.  Ms. Howard said she did not mind paying



  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING JUNE 5, 2007  2007-74-(5) 

 
the fee, although it is high, and asked is that because those who can pay have to pay more to 
cover those who cannot pay?  Ms. LaPlante said that is part of it because we waive the fee for 
low-income kids.! Regarding ELA there is a waiting list but the school w ill hold 75.  There are 
only 60 kids so the teacher ratio is 20 to 1.  Her question is why when we need more kids do 
you turn kids away from ELA.  Dr. McCabe said the Board previously made the decision to 
l imit enrollment at ELA to 60.!  She would like to see the Englewood Middle School page in the 
Budget broken out between Flood and Sinclair.  Ms. LaPlante said she can do that and 
appreciates the input that the Financial Advisory Committee has provided. 
 
Debbie PennÑ informed the Board that she had sent today a list of questions concerning the 
Budget to Ms. LaPlante and Dr. McCabe.  She stated her main concern was that there were 
Òtoo many chiefs and not enough indiansÓ in the district.  Stating we have a lot of non-
teaching people and she would like to see the sharing of principals and other ideas considered. 
Ms. LaPlante said she would forward Ms. Penn's email to the Board and that she did answer 
Ms. Penn's question in an email.  Ms. Penn thanked Ms. LaPlante. 
 

Ms. Miller closed the Public Hearing for Fiscal Year 2007-2008 Budget at 7:55 p.m. 
 

IX. ACTION/ DISCUSSION/ INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

1. FBLA Team Presentation 
The team cancelled their presentation tonight because several members of the team 
have started summer jobs and could not attend. 
 

2. Englewood High School High School Technology Fee 
 Mrs. Scaggiari asked for clarification on what the fee money is to be used to purchase. 

She wanted to be clear that the money from fees was not used for capital expenditures. 
Ms. LaPlante said she could work w ith the schools to be certain the fees are spelled out 
in the student handbook so parents will know what the fee is being spent for.  Stating 
that the intent of the fee is for consumables for the students who are paying the fees and 
are there now.  It is not for equipment, which is paid for from the general fund.  Ms. 
Scaggiari said she understands that those parents who can afford to pay cover the cost 
remaining from those who cannot afford to pay and it seems to her the more 
appropriate way to determine the cost of the fees is to divide the total money required 
by the total number of students and that would be the fee amount parents would pay, 
w ith the district covering the amount that is not paid by low income families. She stated 
ÒIt seems that because I make more money than some that I am being punished for 
that.Ó  Ms. Thompson asked what would happen if we do not approve this increase? 
Ms. LaPlante replied we would have to cut back or something else would have to go 
w ithout.  Ms. Eldridge said that schools that have more money than we do have more 
technology resource and that puts us behind.  Ms. Thompson stated that she was not 
opposed to wealthier families subsidizing families who are less wealthy but she is 
philosophically opposed to student fees.  Dr. McCabe then asked what about clickers, 
document-handlers and SmartBoards and those types of items? Ms. LaPlante interjected 
that is not what fees are for.  Ms. Scaggiari reiterated that originally the request listed 
only consumables and then it changed to include the equipment type items.  Ms. 
LaPlante said that is right much of that equipment has been purchased with mill levy 
funds supporting the ILT plans.  Ms. Hunt said, Òyou lost me, you just lost me, what is 
the technology fee for?Ó Mr. Gorsky asked are we raising all this money by increasing 



  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING JUNE 5, 2007  2007-75-(6) 

the fee to buy toner? Ms. LaPlante said it should only be for consumable type things.  
Ms. Hunt asked where would the money come from to pay for the SmartBoards, 
document-handlers, and those types of items.  Ms. LaPlante said the ILT group would 
access the need and then request funds.  It involves juggling items to buy what is most 
needed.  Dr. McCabe said he was no longer clear on this item.  Ms. Scaggiarri said she 
would like to see the specifics on what this fee is intended to be used for.  Dr. McCabe 
pointed out that at the May 15th meeting, according to the minutes, the ILT team 
requested the fee increase stating they would use some of the money to buy document-
handlers, clickers, SmartBoards .  Ms. LaPlante said yes and they did not catch when 
she said, ÒWhoa, time-out, your fee needs to be for consumables.Ó  Dr. McCabe said 
then it is our fault that this is not clear enough, so we will pull it off.  Ms. Miller request 
that the administrators work with Beth Hankle to clarify the issue and bring specific 
information, which also might change the amount of the requested fee.  Mr. Gorsky 
would like student input as to what technology they would like and have students have 
a say in what they w ill be asked to pay for. Ms. Thompson stated that this issue points 
out the crisis we have in funding our schools and making certain our students have 
what they need to be competitive. 

 
3. Accreditation Contract 

The Board approved the revised Accreditation Contract.  Ms. Vedra explained that the 
current Accreditation Contract was supposed to run from 2000 to 2007, but because the 
state could not agree on some items, it has been extended to June 30, 2008. Each year 
this agreement has been updated and currently is dramatically different than the first 
one.  Ms. Vedra has presented the change to the Board each year to keep a record of the 
changes.  The core beliefs from the past strategic plan have been taken out and inserted 
were objectives from the Strategic Plan approved in February 2007 also included is the 
new district Mission Statement. The changes were presented in red in the Accreditation 
Contract.  There is an onsite visit and Ms Vedra will then give the signed plan to CDE. 
The Accreditation Contract is attached as an addendum to these minutes. 
 
Mr. Gorsky moved, and Ms. Thompson seconded, to approve the revised Accreditation 
Contract between Englewood Schools and the Colorado State Board of Education, 
effective July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008.  
 

ROLL CALL:     Mr. Gorsky, Aye  Mrs. Scaggiari, Aye 
   Ms. Hunt, Aye         Ms. Thompson, Aye 

            Ms. Miller, Aye  Motion Carried, 5-0  
 

4. School Improvement Plan 
Ms. Vedra stated that because the Accreditation Plan drives the School Improvement 
Plan the workbook and the rubric, that DAAC uses to access the school improvement 
plans that come to them in the fall, require revisions.  Primary changes were adding the 
language of all of the targeted areas in the curriculum and instructional areas.  These 
came for the new Strategic Plan.  The goal for this first year is that schools w ill 
document what they are doing that is aligned with the targeted areas of strategies and 
objectives of the Strategic Plan.  DAAC brings them to the Board so they know the 
Board is in agreement.  School Improvement Plans are provided to the Board for their 
information but do not require Board approval. 
 



  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING JUNE 5, 2007  2007-76-(7) 

 
5. Executive Session 

Ms. Miller stated that the Board would move into Executive Session to discuss the 
Student Count Audit and invited, Ms. Diedrich, Ms. LaPlante, Mr. Gorsky, Dr. McCabe 
and Adele Reester into the Executive Session. 
 
Mr. Scaggiari moved, and Ms. Miller seconded, that the Board enter into Executive 
Session to discuss determination of positions relative to matters that may be subject to 
negotiations, development of strategy for negotiations and instruction of negotiators in 
accordance with C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e).  Included in this session w ill be the discussion of 
legal advice on specific legal questions in accordance with C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(b). 
 
Dr. McCabe asked Ms. Scaggiari to repeat the inviting of persons into the Executive 
Session.  She invited Ms. Diedrich, Ms. LaPlante, Mr. Gorsky, Dr. McCabe, Adele 
Reester.  Ms. Miller invited Ms. Vedra was excused. 
 

ROLL CALL:     Mr. Gorsky, Aye  Mrs. Scaggiari, Aye 
   Ms. Hunt, Aye         Ms. Thompson, Aye 

            Ms. Miller, Aye  Motion Carried, 5-0  
 
At this point there was a five-minute break to clear the room. 
The Executive Session started at 8:23 p.m.  

 
Ms. Scaggiari moved, and Ms. Miller seconded, to return to regular session. 
 

ROLL CALL:     Mr. Gorsky, Aye  Mrs. Scaggiari, Aye 
   Ms. Hunt, Aye         Ms. Thompson, Aye 

            Ms. Miller, Aye  Motion Carried, 5-0  
 
The Executive Session adjourned at 10:28 p.m. 
 

6. Resolution of Student Count Audit 
Ms. LaPlante intended to ask the Board to adopt a resolution authorizing the payment 
of $593,469.06 from General Fund Reserves as payment of the disputed Student Count 
Audit.  After the Executive Session discussions the Board decided to table the 
resolution. 
 

7. Consensus Items 
Mrs. Scaggiari moved, and Ms. Hunt seconded, to approve the consensus items as 
follows: 
a.   Personnel Recommendations & Addendum 

 b.   Policy JLCB and JLCB-R Immunization (second reading) 
 c.    Textbook Adoption Prentice Hall Realidades (second reading) 

 
ROLL CALL:     Mr. Gorsky, Aye  Mrs. Scaggiari, Aye 
   Ms. Hunt, Aye         Ms. Thompson, Aye 

            Ms. Miller, Aye  Motion Carried, 5-0  



  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING JUNE 5, 2007  2007-77-(8) 

 
8. Board Members' Choice 

Mrs. Scaggiari said the Englewood High School and ColoradoÕs Finest A lternative H igh 
School graduations  were great and she thanked everyone who worked on these events. 

 
 Ms. Hunt also thought the graduation exercises were both great.  She attended the 

closing events at Sinclair and reported that it was a fun event w ith many activities.  She 
thanked Vickie Howard for her contributions to the Sinclair festivities.  She also 
attended the kindergarten continuation at Clayton that was very nice. 

 
 Mr. Gorsky reiterated he agreed with everything Ms. Hunt said as he also attended the 

end of the school year events.  Stating that he has tried to attend all the events and only 
missed if it conflicted with his work.  

 
 Ms. Miller stated the ColoradoÕs Finest Rose Ceremony was phenomenal and she 

appreciated the format used for their graduation exercises.  She attended the 
Englewood High School Senior Awards N ight saying it was great fun but very long.  
She was not able to attend the Sinclair activities celebrating the school and its closing 
but she did attend SinclairÕs Continuation activities and thought it was well done.  
Saying thank you, to the great Colorado weather for cooperating again, she also 
commented on the exceptional Englewood High School Graduation.  Ms. Miller 
reminded and encouraged Board Members to attend the Candidates N ight activity on 
June 12th at 7:00 p.m.  She invited and encouraged all perspective candidates to attend to 
learn from Jane Urschel, from Colorado Association of School Boards, what is required 
and involved in being a school board member.   

 
X. COMMUNICATIONS 

A list of upcoming Board events is provided in the agenda. 
 

XI. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Dr. McCabe provided these items in the form of a memorandum. 

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 There being no further business, Ms. Miller adjourned the meeting at 10:37 p.m. 
 
 
_________________________________  _______________________________ 
Ms. Karen Miller, President  Linda Felling, Secretary to the  
Board of Education  Superintendent and Board of Education 
 
 
_________________________ 
Date Approved 


